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HISTORY OF IHE
4OTH INFANTRY DIVISION (MECHANIZED)
(GRIZZLY)

Militia companies from California, Arizona, Colorado, New Mexico and
Utah, with heritages from 1874, comprised the National Guard units which were
organized into the 40th Infantry Division on 18 July 1917. Mobilized on that
date for its first tour of Federal service, the Division became the training
vehicle whose members were later to distinguish themselves in such legendary
units as "The Lost Battalion', and at places indelibly written into the
history books; the Argonne and St. Mihiel.

In 1919, following World War I, the 40th was returned to National Guard
status, with its units organized in three states - California, Nevada, and
Utah. For twenty-one years, the Division met the readiness requirements of
its time, and on 3 March 1941 - nine months before Pearl Harbor - the 40th
was again inducted into federal service. The training site was Camp San Luis
Obispo. 1In 1942, the 40th landed in Hawaii, then Guadalcanal; the 40th sub-
sequently served in New Britain, the invasion of Luzon, the assaults on Panay
Island and the Negros Island chain, from which it prepared for the invasion
which never occurred. The 40th was slated to spearhead the final assault of
Japan's home islands. The war over, the 40th was moved to occupy Korea.
Although it could not be foreseen at the time, the Korean stationing was an
ironic harbinger of campaigns yet to come.

7 April 1946, marked the end of the 40th's distinguished World War II
service; Camp Stoneman was the place to which the command was returned home
and to its role as an integral part of the California National Guard.

Shortly after the outbreak of the Korean Conflict in 1950, the Division
received its third call to active duty. At that time it numbered approxi-
mately 10,000 officers and men in 46 Southern California communities. The
Division commenced training at Camp Cooke, California on 1 September 1950
and sailed for Japan the following April. After training for ten months on
the main Japanese island of Honshu, the 40th moved to Korea in January 1952,
where it relieved the veteran 24th Infantry Division on the battle line.
Battle participation included Heartbreak Ridge, Sandbag Castle and the
Punchbowl. The Division colors returned to California and the Division was
inactivated at San Francisco on 19 June 1954. Meanwhile, National Guardsmen
who answered the original call to duty had returned to the states in March-
June 1952. Twelve hundred of these returned veterans organized the 40th
Infantry Division (NGUS) on 2 September 1952. Shortly thereafter, the
Division was reorganized into an armored division and maintained that status
for fourteen years during which time it responded to the National Guard's
dual challenges of readiness for both federal and state missions. It main-
tained federal proficiency as a back-up to the regular Army, and was fre-
quently called upon to respond to state needs in natural disasters and, for
a time, civil disorders.



In 1968, the entire reserve force structure of the U.S. Army underwent
a major reorganization and the 40th Division was deactivated, its place being
then in California by separate brigade and support groups.

12 January 1974, marked the return of the GRIZZLY - a symbol, and a
heritage, which were never really far away. In its new mechanized division
status, (the only such Division in the entire National Guard structure) the
40th draws units and personnel from the length and breadth of California.

As always, its men and women stand ready to respond to the next call or
mission.

COMMANDERS

5 Aug 1917 - 2 Jun 1919 MG Frederick J. Strong
17 Jun 1925 - 30 Jun 1937 MG David P. Barrows

1 Jul 1937 - 18 Jun 1941 MG Walter P. Story

19 Jun 1941 - 15 Apr 1942 MG Ernest J. Dawley

16 Apr 1942 - 21 Jul 1945 MG Rapp Brush

22 Jul 1945 - 7 Apr 1946 BG Donald J. Myers

15 Aug 1946 - 1 Dec 1947 MG Harcourt Hervey

2 Dec 1947 - 1 Sep 1952 MG Daniel H. Hudelson
2 Sep 1952 - 2 Jul 1960 MG Homer O. Eaton, Jr.
3 Jul 1960 - 31 Jan 1968 MG Charles A. Ott, Jr.
12 Jan 1974 - 15 Aug 1974 MG Charles A. Ott, Jr.
16 Aug 1974 - 27 Aug 1975 MG Thomas K. Turnage
28 Aug 1975 - 3 Oct 1976 MG Robert E. Johnson, Jr.
4 Oct 1976 - 7 Nov 1977 MG James T. Keltner

8 Nov 1977 - MG Thomas K. Turnage



MISSION

The missions assigned to the Division are to achieve the highest possi-
ble state of readiness in preparation for mobilization; to train for and be
prepared to respond to the chief executive of the state for the protection
of life and property, and the preservation of peace, order, and public safety;
and to provide support to civil authorities in the event of natural disaster
and for civil defense.

THE 40TH INFANTRY DIVISION (MECH)

Forming the largest reserve component of the Armed Forces within Cali-
fornia, the 40th Infantry Division (Mech), with an authorized strength of 14,
529 men and women, comprizes almost three-fourths the total strength of the
California Army National Guard and contains a majority of its 180 units.

The Division is composed of a Division Headquarters, three Brigades,
Division Artillery, Division Support Command, Cavalry Squadron, Engineer
Battalion, Air Defense Artillery Battalion, Aviation Battalion, Signal Bat-
talion, and a Military Police Company. All assigned units are located within
the State of California except the air defense artillery battalion and two
aviation companies. The 4/200th Air Defense Artillery Battalion, New Mexico
ARNG, is located in Tucumcari, NM. Company B (Combat Support), 40th Aviation
Battalion, Arizona ARNG, is located in Phoenix, AZ. Company D (Attach Heli-
copter), 40th Aviation Battalion, Colorado ARNG, is based in Aurora, just
outside Denver, CO.

Even discounting out-of-state units, the Division still has a signifi-
cant geographic span of control, with units based as far north as Yreka and
as far south as San Diego, a distance of some 720 miles.

If called upon to fight on today's modern battlefield, the 40th
Infantry Division (Mech) would perform its mission as a combined arms team.
It would control its combat arms through the three brigades, each of which
would be assigned subordinate units tailored to meet the specific tactical
situation.

The Division draws much of its combat power, its versatility and its
staying power from its six mechanized infantry battalions, each with an
authorized strength of 761 personnel. They are an integral part of the 40th's
combined arms team and provide the principle means for closing with and
destroying the enemy by fire and maneuver. To enhance their mobility and
survivability on the battlefield and to allow them to work in close coopera-
tion with armor, each battalion is authorized forty-eight M113 armored per-
sonnel carriers, nine M125 81lmm mortar carriers, and four M106 4.2" mortar
carriers. To defeat enemy armor at long or short ranges each battalion is
authorized eighteen jeep mounted TOW and eighteen man-portable DRAGON anti-
tank guided missile launchers.



Four armored battalions form the backbone of the Division, enhancing
its offensive power, survivability, and tank defeating capabilities. Each
armor battalion, with an authorized strength of 501 personnel, adds forty- -
three M48AS5 main battle tanks to the Division's combat power. Despite the
age of the chassis, the new 105mm main gun, RISE diesel engine, improved
sighting and night vision devices have made this tank one of the most formi-
dable fighting vehicles in the world. Each Battalion is also authorized four
M106 4.2" mortar carriers to provide immediate indirect fire support and two
armored vehicle launched bridges on an M60 main battle tank chassis. Each
AVLB is capable of laying one 60 foot long class 60 aluminum scissors bridge
to span obstacles.

Another integral part of the Division combined arms team, the Division
Artillery, provides one target acquisition battery and the lethal punch of
four field artillery battalions. Three of the field artillery battalions
are authorized eighteen M109A1 improved 155mm self-propelled howitzers
apiece. The fourth battalion has twelve M110Al improved 203mm self-propelled
howitzers, giving the Division a total of sixty-six artillery tubes capable
of throwing either conventional or nuclear munitions to a maximum range of
20,600 meters.

The eyes and ears of the Division is its Cavalry Squadron. The squad-
ron's three armored cavalry troops and single air cavalry troop provide vital
intelligence, whether engaged in screening the movement of division elements,
fighting a delaying action, or providing rear area security. With an
authorized strength of 815 personnel, the squadron's twenty-seven M48A5 main
battle tanks, twenty-two M113 armored personnel carriers, nine M106 4.2"
mortar carriers, eighteen jeep mounted TOW, ten OH-58 observation helicopters,
seven UH-1H utility helicopters, and nine UH-1M armed utility helicopters
give it significant combat power.

The aviation battalion also contributes significant combat power to the
Division combined arms team, complementing the air cavalry troops mission
with its capability to perform a host of air support missions., Company A
has thirty-two OH-58 and fourteen UH-1M helicopters which perform command and
control, liaison, and utility support missions for Division elements.

Company B adds another twenty-three UH-1H helicopters to the battalions
aviation assets to support airmobility, aerial resupply, and aerial delivery
of antitank or antipersonnel minefields as required. Company D is authorized
AH-1S, but is presently assigned twenty-one UH-1M, twelve OH-58, and three
UH-1H helicopters to perform its antiarmor and fire support role. The
thirty-six additional attack helicopter company aircraft that would be added
upon mobilization by the assignment of Company C (Attack Helicopter), and the
two UH-1Hs in Company E, would provide the Division a total of one hundred
and forty-three helicopters from the one aviation battalion.

Despite the large numbers of friendly aircraft over the battlefield,
the Division elements are still susceptible to attack by enemy aircraft.
Control of the Division airspace and defense against air attack falls in part
upon the Air Defense Artillery Battalion, which provides a portion of the
air defense umbrella over our sector. The M42 Dusters organic to the batta-
lion have been operational for more than twenty-five years, but can still
provide accurate anti-aircraft fire with their twin 40mm automatic guns, and
can double as direct fire support weapons when necessary. -



The Combat Engineer Battalion adds a decisive edge to Division combat
operations. Helping to maintain our mobility while denying it to the enemy,
or to enhance our survivability through reveting or camouflage, the engineers
can call upon eight combat engineer vehicles, eight scoop loaders, seven
catepillar tractors, three road graders, two twenty-ton cranes, one fairlead
roller and twenty dump trucks. They can operate four water purification
points to provide potable water. The bridge company, using either the M4T6
Class 60 floating bridge/raft or the light tactical raft, can support river
crossing operations employing either one 141 foot or two 75 foot floating
bridges with the MAT6 and one 44 foot light vehicular bridge/raft. To span
obstacles under 60 feet, they are authorized four armored vehicle launched
bridges on the M60 main battle tank chassis.

The mission of the Division Signal Battalion is to provide signal
communication systems and facilities for all echelons of the Division to in-
clude the Division Support Command; to perform direct support cryptologistics;
and to provide photographic support as needed, to include processing of
aerial and ground still pictures. Because of the enormous size and complexity
of the Division organization, the demand for information in combat, and the
vulnerability of any signal communication system to jamming or destruction,
the performance of our signal battalion is critical to success or failure
in combat,

The Military Police Company's mission is to maintain law and order
within a 1200 square kilometer or greater area which could well be over-
flowing with indigenous civilian populations, American military, and enemy
forces operating in our rear areas. With an authorized strength of 191 per-
sonnel, it also seeks to provide personal security against assasination,
rear area security against small enemy forces threatening our rear, control
the stream of enemy prisoners of war, stragglers and refugees, provide
traffic control along congested roads or at choke points, and supports river
crossing operations.

The Division Support Command is composed of a Headquarters and Head-
quarters Company with attached Material Management Center to provide a nerve
center for logistical support, one Maintenance Battalion, one Medical Batta-
lion, one Supply and Transportation Battalion, one Adjutant General Company
and a Finance Company. Broken down into companies or detachments throughout
the brigade or division rear area, these elements can sustain the combat
and combat support forces of the Division for an indefinite period. In an
effort to maintain a favorable combat ratio for our forces, the Maintenance
Battalion provides contact teams up to battalion trains and overhauls or
cannibalizes unserviceable equipment on a priority basis to speedily return
useable equipment to the front. The Medical Battalion maintains medical
clearing stations, manages essential medical supplies, and controls the
air/ground medical evacuation pipeline. The Supply and Transportation
Battalion handles requests for most classes of supply and provides some of
the vehicles required to move it forward to brigade trains, field artillery
battalions, or for stockpiling. In conjunction with the Finance Company,
the Adjutant General Company handles pay or personnel records and controls
the administrative pipeline within the Division. In addition, the Adjutant
General Company operates a postal service and a replacement depot.



Although organized and trained to perform its principle mission upon
mobilization, the 40th Infantry Division (Mech) retains the versatility,
capacity and responsiveness essential to meeting its other missions. It
blends a unique combination of diverse and complex organization with immea-
surable human experience, and several generations of weapons, tactical
vehicles, and support equipment into an instrument responsive to the needs
of the State of California and the Nation.
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TRAINING

) The overriding training objective for the Division is to attain and main-
tain a state of operational effectiveness which will assure the capability of
closing with and destruction of the enemy through prompt and sustained combat
operations. To that end the objective for each level of command is to attain
and maintain the highest possible level of technical and tactical proficiency
consistent with the availability of personnel, equipment, time, funds and
facilities. :

When training schedules call for field training, most of the Division's
tactical elements train at weekend training sites (WETS). Some of these are
small close-in areas made available through special lease agreements which
permit units to make short motor marches to a training area. However, the
majority of our training is conducted at three state-operated training
centers ---Camp Roberts, Camp San Luis Obispo, and Fort Irwin. Federally
funded commercial bus transportation is the preferred means utilized to move
troops to these sites. This allows units to arrive with personnel compara-
tively fresh, rested, and in good condition for training. It maximizes avail-
able training time and provides for greater flexibility in training plans.

Some training can be profitably conducted at home station and every effort
is made to utilize the advantages home station training affords. Most check-
flights for crewmembers in the aviation battalion or air cavalry troop are
conducted at the parent flight facility, and some units have tactical vehicles
sited at their armories to facilitate training in crew drill or procedures.

Unless a unit has been selected to perform annual training out-of-state
or out-of-country at an active Army installation, all the Division elements
perform their annual training at one of the three state-operated training
centers. These three sites have excellent training facilities. Cumulatively,
they offer sufficient maneuver area and gunnery ranges to accomodate the
entire Division.

Camp Roberts was licensed to the State of California in April 1971.
Located in the central coastal area near Pso Robles, this 43,000 acre training
site has. 15 ranges, many of them multi-purpose, and can accomodate all in-
fantry weapons as well as the 155mm and eight-inch howitzers. Fort Hunter-
-Liggett, an Active Army operated training site located immediately north but
adjacent to Camp Roberts, offers additional training areas and ranges when
required. Camp Roberts is the primary training site for the Division's Third
Brigade and elements of the Guard from Northern California.

Camp San Luis Obispo is a state-owned and operated training site located
in central California. The camp contains some 5,600 acres of land and is the
home of the State's property and supply offices and warehouses, the Cali-
fornia Military Academy (the State's officer candidate training school) and
the Sixth United States Army Reserve Forces Noncommissioned Officers Academy.
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